
iiitllUU

. ro \acJus "

SELAH CITY COUNCIL

4:00pm July 14, 2015



Selah City Council
Regular Meeting
Tuesday, July 14,2015
4:00pm
City Council Chambers

Mayor:
Mayor Pro Tern:
Council Members:

CITY OF SELAH

115 West Naches Avenue

Selah, Washington 98942

City Administrator:
City Attorney:
Clerk/Treasurer:

A.

B.

0.

D.

E.

F.

G.

AGENDA

Call to Order-Mayor Gawlik

Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance

Agenda Changes None

Public Appearances/Introductions/Presentations

Getting To Know Our Businesses None

Communications

1. Oral

None

John Gawlik

Paul Overby
John Tierney
Dave Smeback

Allen Schmid

Roy Sample
Jane Williams

Laura Ritchie

Don Wayman
Bob Noe

Dale Novobielski

This is a public meeting. If you wish to address the Council concerning any matter that is not on the agenda, you may do so
now. Please come forward to the podium, stating your name for the record. The Mayor resen/es the right to place a time limit
on each person asking to be heard.

2.

Joe Henne

Written

a. June 2015 Monthly Report for Building Permits and Inspections, Animal Control and
Code Enforcement

H. Proclamations/Announcements

I. Consent Agenda

None

All items listed with an asterisk (*) are considered routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion, without
discussion. Should any Council Member request that any item of the Consent Agenda be considered separately, that item will
be removed from the Consent Agenda and become a part of the regular Agenda.

Monica Lake * 1.

Dale N. * 2.

Approval of Minutes: June 15, 2015 Study Session & Council Meeting
Approval of Claims & Payroll

J. Public Hearings None

K. New Business

Eric Steen 1. Lexipol, Law Enforcement Standard Operating Procedures Manual

L. Old Business None

M. Resolutions

TomDurant 1. Resolution Approving the Preliminary Plat of "Somerset IP' (912.42.15-02) and
Adopting Findings and Conditions of Preliminary Plat Approval



N. Ordinances

Joe Henne * 1. Ordinance Authorizing the Acquisition of Personal Property and Execution of a
Financing Contract and Related Documentation Relating to the Acquisition of Said
Property

O. Reports/Announcements

1. Mayor
2. Council Members

3. Departmental
4. Boards

P. Executive Session

1. 15 Minute Session - Executive Session: 15 Minute Session - Public Employee
Performance Review ROW 40.30.110(g)

Q. Adjournment

Next study Session
Next Regular Meeting

July 28. 2015
July 28. 2015

Each item on the Council Agenda is covered by an
Agenda Item Sheet (AIS)

A Yellow AIS indicates an action item.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Informational Item

7/14/2015 G-2a

Title: June 2015 Monthly Report for Building Permits and Inspections, Animal

Control and Code Enforcement.

Thru: Donald Wayman, City Administrator

From: Joe Henne, Public Works Director

Action Requested: Informational - No action

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: N/A

Funding Source: N/A

Staff Recommendation:

Informational Only

Background / Findings & Facts:

Attached are the Building Permits and Inspections, Animal Control and Code

Enforcement reports for June.

Recommended Motion:

Informational only.



June2015 Building Pennit and Inspection Reports

No. Issue Date Name/Project Address Type Master

Plan

Fees

6370 6/3/2015 Parmlnder Thind 510 N. 15th Street Building $4,809.18
6371 6/3/2015 Parminder Thind 510 N. 15th Street Plumbing $191.52
6372 6/3/2015 Parmlnder Thind 510 N. 15th Street Mechanical $149.20
6373 6/3/2015 Parminder Thind 510 N. 16th Street UG Sprinklers $40.18
6400 6/23/2015 James Garner 207 Pleasant New SFR $3,841.24
6401 6/23/2015 James Gamer 207 Pleasant New Plumbing $96.17
6402 6/23/2015 James Garner 207 Pleasant New Mechanical $53.27
6412 6/1/2015 BBS Selah LLC/Happy Feel Nails &Spa 502 S. Rrst Street #B Tenant Improvements/New Commercial $475.54
6413 6/1/2015 BBS Selah LLC/Happy Feet Nails &Spa 502 S. First Street #B Plumbing Commercial $248.49
6414 6/1/2015 BBS Selah LLC/Happy Feet Nails &Spa 502 S. Rrst Street #B Mechanical Commercial $93.39
6415 6/3/2015 Rick Ba2:aldud 808 W. 5th Ave Re-Roof $78.60
6417 6/8/2015 Fdchard Bergstrom 104 N. 3rd Street U. G. Sprinklers $40.18
6418 6/22/2015 Yakima Valley School 609 Speyers Rd. Demolish & Replace Roof/Skylights $1,245.96
6419 6/9/2015 Deb Rath 304 N. 7th Street Re-Roof $78.60
6420 6/10/2015 Vikings Investors 1 LLC 907 Cherry Footing/Foundation Only for (2) Triplexfs) $0.00
6421 6/11/2015 Loretta Skala 109 N. 14th Street Re-Roof $78.60
6423 6/23/2015 Graf Investments 907 W. Cherry New Plumbing $994.67
6424 6/23/2015 Graf Investments 907 W. Cherry New Mechanical $588.68
6425 6/23/2015 Graf Investments 907 W. Cherry U. G. Sprinklers $40.18
6426 6/22/2015 Selah Lince Early Leaming Center 316 W. Naches Ave. New Commercial $1,232.05
6427 ^/22/2015 Selah Lince Early Leaming Center 316 W. Nadhes Ave. Plumbing Commercial $74.41
6428 6/16/2015 Ken Aifan 312 S. First Street Re-Roof $78.61
6429 6/16/2015 Darin Brown 1602 W. Naches Ave U. G. Sprinklers $40.18
6431 6/23/2015 Graf investments 907 W. Cherry New Building (2) Triplex(s) $15,218.70
6432 6/23/2015 Torkelson Construction 203 Whisper Way Footing/Foundation Only $0.00
6436 6/23/2015 Torkelson Construction 205 Whisper Way Footing/Foundation Only $0.00
6440 6/23/2015 Torkelson Construction 207Whisper Way Footing/Foundation Only $0.00
6444 6/23/2015 Torkelson Construction 209 Whisper Way Footing/Foundation Only $0.00
6448 6/23/2015 Torkelson Construction 211 Whisper Way Footing/Foundation Only $0.00
6452 6/23/2015 John Johnston 703 Viewcrest Court Re-Roof $78.60
6453 6/29/2015 Brian Lund 406 Apple Way Deck $218.07

TOTAL: $30,084.27



June 2015 Animal Control Report

DATE LOCATION PROBLEM/CONCERN ACTION TAKEN RESULT

6/1/2015 100 BLKW FREMONT FOUND DOG TAKEN TO HUMANE SHELTER

6/4/2015 100 BLK PARK AVE. SKUNKS ON PROPERTY DO NOT CATCH SKUNKS

6/5/2015 WIXSON PARK PITBULL DOGWASABOXXER

6/10/2015 3RD & RIVERVIEW LOST DOG UNABLE TO LOCATE

6/10/2015 600 BLK W FREMONT BARKING DOG CONTACTED OWNER TOOK DOG INSIDE

6/10/2015 300 BLK N 3RD STREET FARRELLCATS DO NOT CATCH STRAYS LOANED TRAP TO OWNER

6/16/2015 900 BLK CRUSHER CNYN DEAD CAT IN ROADWAY REMOVED CAT

6/17/2015 400 BLK JAMIE DR. BARKING DOG DOG NOT BARKING

6/19/2015 1400 BLK PEAR SNAKE in YARD CHASED SNAKE INTO FIELD

6/19/2015 300 BLK SPEYERS DEAD CAT IN ROADWAY REMOVED CAT

6/22/2015 700 BLK W BARTLETT AVE. LOOSE DOG TAKEN TO HUMANE SHELTER

6/22/2015 1000 BLKWNACHES SKUNKS ON PROPERTY DO NOT CATCH SKUNKS

6/25/2015 500 BLK SUNRISE BARKING DOG SPOKE TO OWNER WILL KEEP DOG INSIDE

6/25/2015 TAYLOR LOOP LOOSE DOG NOT IN CITY CALLED COUNTY ACO

6/29/2015 200 BLK HILLCREST PITBULL UNABLE TO LOCATE

6/29/2015 300 BLK PLEASANT AVE STRAY CATS DO NOT CATCH STRAYS

6/29/2015 1600 WYAKIMA AVE. LOOSE DOG TAKEN TO HUMANE SHELTER

6/30/2015 800 BLK S 3RD STREET FOUND DOG CONTACTED OWNER RETURNED TO OWNER



June 2015 Code Enforcement Report

R- Brons, Report

DATE: ADDRESS: SMC VIOLATION DESCRIPTION

6/1/2015 600 Block N. 13th Street R105.0& 6.58.260

Non-Permitted addition & Storage or parking motor vehicle-
Residential areas.

6/1/2015 900 Block W. Fremont Ave. 6.58.260 Vehicle Parked on Unimproved Surface
6/2/2015 300 Block N. 10th Street 6.58.050 & 6.58.180 Weeds & Landscape Maintenance
6/2/2015 1600 Block W. Naches Ave. 6,58.050 & 6.58.180 Weeds <& Landscape Maintenance
6/2/2015 200 Block N. iOtli Street 6.58.050 & 6.58.180 Weeds <& Landscape Maintenance
6/3/2015 100 BlockE. Fremont Ave. 6.58.050 & 6.58.180 Weeds <& Landscape Maintenance
6/3/2015 100 Block E. Fremont Ave. 6.58.050 & 6.58.180 Weeds & Landscape Maintenance
6/4/2015 700 Block S. 4th Street 6.58.050 & 6.58.180 Weeds & Landscape Maintenance
6/4/2015 100 Block W, Bartlett 6.58.050, 6.58.180 & 6.58.090 Weeds & Landscape Maintenance & Dumping Area
6/5/2015 700 Block Home Ave. 6.58.260 Vehicle Parked on Unimproved Surfece
6/5/2015 600 Block W. Home Ave. 6.58.050 & 6.58.180 Weeds & Landscape Maintenance
6/5/2015 500 Block N. 13th Street 6.58.050 & 658.180 Weeds <& Landscape Maintenance
6/5/2015 500 Block N. 13th Street 6.58.050 & 6.58,180 Weeds & Landscape Maintenance
6/5/2015 400 Block N. 13th Street 6.58.050 & 6,58.180 Weeds & Landscape Maintenance
6/5/2015 N. 8th Street 6.58.050 & 6.58.180 Weeds & Landscape Maintenance
6/9/2015 300 Block Southern Ave. 6.58.050 & 6.58.180 Weeds & Landscape Maintenance
6/9/2015 900 Block N.WenasRd. 6.58.050 & 6.58.180 Weeds & Landscape Maintenance
6/9/2015 200 Block W. Selah Ave. 6.58.050 & 6.58.180 Weeds <& Landscape Maintenance
6/9/2015 200 Block E. Fremont Ave. 6.58.050 & 6.58.180 Weeds & Landscape Maintenance
6/11/2015 100 Block N. Wenas Rd. 6.58,050 <8:6.58.180 Weeds & Landscape Maintenance
6/11/2015 100 Block E. Orchard Ave. 658.250 Growth or debris which obstructs public right ofway
6/12/2015 1000 Block W. Fremont Ave 6.58,250 Growth or debris which obstructs public right ofway
6/17/2015 400 Block Pleasant Ave. 6.58.050, 6.58,180 <&6.58.200 Certain Growth/Landscape maintenance/Fire Ha2ard
6/17/2015 300 Block Pleasant Ave. 6.58.050 & 6.58.180 Weeds <8: Landscape Maintenance
6/23/2015 Driscoll Road 658.250 Growtli or debris which obstructs public right of way
6/23/2015 500 Block Hegel Court 6.58.050 & 6.58.180 Weeds <fe Landscape Maintenance
6/24/2015 800 Block S. 7th Street 6.58.050 & 6.58.180 Weeds & Landscape Maintenance
6/25/2015 Hovde Park Drive 6.58.050 <8:6,58.180 Weeds <fe Landscape Maintenance



June 2015 Code Enforcement

C. Knox, Report

DATE: ADDRESS: SMC VIOLATION DESCRIPTION

6/4/2015 Selah Plaza 6.58.180 & 6.58.070 Landscape Maintoiance/Poteiitial pest harboring or fire danger

6/5/2015 500 Blk S. First Street 6.58.030, 6.58.260 & 6.58.70
Littered premises/Storage or parking motor vehicle-Residential
areas/Potential pest harboring or fire danger

6/5/2015 700 BlkN. First Street 6.58.180 & 6058.260
Landscape maintenance & Storage or parking motor vehicles-
residential areas

6/5/2015 200 Blk S. 3rd Street 6.58.060,6.58.70 & 10.32.050
Uncovered trash and abandoned material/Potential pest harboring or
fire danger/Temporary use permit

6/8/2015 100 Blk E, Fremont 6.58.050 & 6.58.180 Certain Growth/Landscape maintenance

6/8/2015 900 Blk W. Fremont Ave.
6.58.030, 6.58.050, 6.58.070,
6.58.060 & 6.58.180

Litteredpremises.Certain growth/Potential pest harboring of fire
danger/Uncovered trash and abandoned material

6/10/2015 800 Blk Speyers Rd. 6.58.050 Certain Growth
6/10/2015 600 Blk S 3rd Street 6.58.050,6.58.180 & 6.58.200 Landscape Maintenance,Certam growth and Fire hazard
6/11/2015 1600 Blk WYakmaAve. 6.58.250 Growth or debris which obstructs public way
6/17/2015 100 Blk E fremont Ave. 6.58.200 Fire hazard

6/19/2015 500 Blk S First Street 10 violations

6/19/2015 100 BlkN5th Street 6.58.060 & 6.58.070
Uncovered trash and abandoned material Potential pest harboringor
fire danger

6/22/2015 300 Blk S 3rd Street 6.58.050 Certain growth
6/24/2015 ^00 Blk Goodlander 6.58.050 Certain growth
6/25/2015 800 Blk Speyers Rd 6.58.050 Certain growth

Verbals Pastime Tavern Menu board on sidewalk

300 Blk E Home Ave. Motoriiome parked on street-living in
1000 Blk W Naches Ave. Tree overhanging onto neighbors property
W Naches & Highland Ct. Shrubs blocking view



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

7/14/2015 1 -1

Title: Approval of Minutes: June 15, 2015 Study Session & Council Meeting

Thru: Donald Wayman, City Administrator

From: Monica Lake, Executive Assistant

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: N/A

Funding Source: N/A

Staff Recommendation:

Approval of Minutes

Background / Findings & Facts:

See Minutes for details

Recommended Motion:

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as read. (This item is part of the
Consent Agenda)

































CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

7/14/2015 1-2

Title: Claims & Payroll

Thru: Donald Wayman, City Administrator

From: Monica Lake, Executive Assistant

Action Requested: Informational - No action

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: See Check Registers

Funding Source: Various. See Check Registers.

Staff Recommendation:

Approval of Claims & Payroll as listed on Check Registers.

Background / Findings & Facts:

See Check Registers.

Recommended Motion:

Motion to Approve the Consent Agenda as read. (This item is part of the

Consent Agenda)



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

7/1/2015 K-1

Title: Lexipol, Law Enforcement Standard Operating Procedures Manual

Thru: Donald Wayman, City Administrator

From: Eric Steen, Deputy Police Chief

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: Starting up cost: $4,950.00 / Every year after: $4, 450.00 / See
narrative for further details.

Funding Source: Crime Prevention Fund / 181-000-097-597-00-01-00

Staff Recommendation:

Recommendation to transfer $5,000.00 from the Crime Prevention fund to the

Professional Services line (001-00-021-521-26-41-00) for the purpose of cloud

based standardized operating procedures manual.

Background / Findings & Facts:

The standard operating procedure (SOP) manual in every law enforcement organization is a vital

resource. It's the mechanism that guides everything from large scale operations down to dally tasks.

Failing to keep the SOP current with municipal, state, and federal law opens the officer and city up for

potential lawsuits.

Lexipol offers us a unique way to make sure the SOP Is continuously up to date with current law and

Washington State Police Chief and Sheriff standards. They are a known and reputable Industry standard

throughout Washington and surrounding states. However, the primary benefit is the reduced liability for

the city, agency, and the individual officer.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

This a cloud based service that routinely trains officers on their knowledge of the department's policies,

and law. It keeps record of the same training and test results.

The first year startup cost will be $4,950.00, plus tax.

After the first year, the annual fee for this service will be $4,450.00.

We are asking permission to transfer enough money from the Crime Prevention fund, to our

Professional Services budget line item in order to purchase the first year of this service. From that point

on we would need to budget for this service in the annual budget as the Crime Prevention fund, though

continuously fed by restitution payments from court proceedings, will not likely be able to sustain the

annual renewal fee.

Recommended Motion:

Approval to transfer money from the Crime Prevention fund to the police
department's Professional Services line item, which is then to be used for the
purchasing of the first year costs of Lexipol's SOP services.



Lexipol
PREDICTABLE IS PREVENTABLE'

THE LEXIPOL ADVANTAGE

Lexipol is America's leading provider
ofstate-specific Law Enforcement Policy
Content with integrated daily training

WHY PARTNER WITH LEXIPOL?

Law Enforcement Isthe government's most visible

public agency. The best way to enhance your agency's

reputation and Increase respect Iswith sound,

defensible, up-to-date policies coupled with dally
policy training.

Lexipol Isthe only company that offers digital Law

Enforcement policy manual management, regular

policy updates, and certifiable dally training

against policy.

Proven to Reduce the Numberof Claims Paid

Lexipol's policy and training system has also been

proven to reduce the number of claims paid. In a

recent study, Lexipol users sawfewer litigated claims,

when compared to pre-Lexipol implementation.

X

Custom Policy Content
Lexipol provides customizable, state-specific,
web-based Law Enforcement Policy Manuals
with an integrated training component to help

police, sheriff, probation, state and federal
agencies operate more efficiently and effectively.
We provide comprehensive, defensible policies
written by legal and publ ic safety professionals.

Daily Training Bu lletins
Lexipol's DailyTraining Bulletins bring the manual
into practicethrough real-life, scenario-based
training exercises emphasizi ng high-risk, low
frequency events. Completed and verified in less
than ten minutes per day, DailyTraining Bulletins
may qualify for continuous training certification.

Lexipol's experienced team can assist with
implementation of your Lexipol manual, freeing
your personnel to focus on serving and protecting
the community. Lexipol's team can also manage
the administration of critical updates for your
policy manual and manage your agency's Daily
Training Bulletins. Lexipol's Implementation
and Management services allow your agency to
control and distribute policy and trainingwhile we
doallthework.

To learn more, visit vvwwJexipoTcom^^^



lexipol
PREDICTABLE IS PREVENTABLE*

Lexipol Value
• Lexipol provides more than 150 policies based on

federal and state statutes, case law, regulations and
law enforcement best practices.

• Lexipol experts constantly monitor major court
decisions, iegislatlon and emerging trends affecting
law enforcement operations and provide policy
updates in response.

• The Lexipol system will allow cross-referencing
to any accreditation standard.

• Supervisors can track officer training using
flexible reporting tools.

• Lexipol archives your department's policy manual
and DTB records to provide an invaluable resource
Indefense litigation or personnel matters.

• Le>dpors policy and training components are 100%
web-based. There is no software to purchase
or maintain.

THE LEXIPOL ADVANTAGE
Comprehensive, Defensible Policy and Dally Training

• Lexipol's DTB service provides comprehensive
training to help law enforcement officers learn the
content of the department policy manual and
practical applications of the policies.

• Lexipolprovides 360 scenario-based training
bulletins annually that link directly to your
policy manual.

• Your department can customize Lexipol's DTBsto
address department-specific topics.

• DTBs are designed to be completed Inabout
six minutes.

• Automated tools help ensure consistency
between policy and training materials.

• More than 1,800 public safety organizations
representing 100,000 law enforcement and fire
personnel in 20 states use the Lexipol system.

69% FEWER LITIGATED CLAIMS

Two years post-Lexipol Implementation, perhaps the most positive trend is that Lexipol users
have 69% fewer litigated claims compared to pre-Lexipol implementation. And, the claims that

are litigated have, on average, $7k paid out instead of $20k pre-Lexipol.

A Sheriff's Office in California had a pursuit that ended tragically, with the death of a deputy in

an unmarked unit and a hostage trapped inside the suspect vehicle. The California Vehicle Code

provides immunity for any death, injury or property damage caused by a suspect vehicle if the agency

has a policy that conforms to the code requirements. This agency had its Lexipol policy manual in

place as of April 10,2002.The fatal pursuit occurred on April 22,2002. This agency had immunity

in what could have been a very expensive lawsuit.

To learn more, visit www.lexipol.com or call 949.484.4444



Sample or Lexipol Daily Training Bulletin

Law Enforcement Daily Training Bulletin

Medical Attention for Injuries Sustained Using Force

SCENARIO: Augustus Snerd and Samuel Mortimer get into a fight over a pool game in the
Dive Bar. By the time you and your backup arrive, a full-on, bench clearing brawl is in
progress. Eventually you utilize some very appropriate baton strikes. The crowd settles
down and Mr. Snerd and Mr. Mortimer are arrested. Paramedics are on scene.

Mr. Mortimer complains of pain to his leg from the baton strikes and you can see some
redness and an abrasion. The injuries appear to be minor.

ISSUE: WHAT ARE YOUR OBLIGATIONS AFTER INFLICTING INJURY BY USING
FORCE UPON MR. MORTIMER?

RULE: Prior to booking or release, medical assistance shall be obtained for any person who
exhibits signs of physical distress, who has sustained visible injury, expresses a complaint of
injury or continuing pain, or who was rendered unconscious. Any individual exhibiting signs
of physical distress after an encounter should be continuously monitored until he/she can be
medically assessed.
Based upon the officer's initial assessment of the nature and extent of the subject's injuries,
medical assistance may consist of examination by fire personnel, paramedics, hospital staff
or medical staff at the jail.

ANALYSIS: When you apply force and the subject of the force sustains injury, complains of
pain or becomes unconscious, you are obligated to obtain medical assistance. Since Mr.
Mortimer's injury appears to be minor, have the paramedics examine him and either treat
him as appropriate or clear him. Don't forget to document the use of force, injury and
subsequent medical examination in your report. Remember too, that according to policy
photographs of the visible or complained of area of the injury should also be taken and
referred to in your report.

CONCLUSION: Responsible use offeree comes with obligations. Ifa subject is in pain, has
a visible injury or loses consciousness, seek medical attention for the subject prior to
booking or release.

POLICY: 300.6-Medical Considerations

QUESTION: Minor injuries caused by use offeree do not require medical examination.

ANSWERS:

a) True
b) False



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

7/14/2015 M-1

Title: Resolution Approving the Preliminary Plat of "Somerset 11" (912.42,15-

02) and Adopting Findings and Conditions of Preliminary Plat Approval

Thru: Donald Wayman, City Administrator

From: Thomas R Durant, Community Planner

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Approval

Fiscal Impact: N/A

Funding Source: N/A

Staff Recommendation:

Approval of recommendation to approve preliminary plat with conditions.
Denial of recommendation to require private access street to comply with City

Design and Construction Standards.

Background / Findings &, Facts:

Hearing Examiner conducted an open record public hearing June 10, 2015 and

prepared findings of fact and conclusions with two recommendations on June
26, 2015: The first recommendation for Approval of the Preliminary Plat with

25 conditions. The second recommendation that the private access street

comply with roadway section design standards as determined by the Public

Works Director in accordance with the City of Selah Design and Construction

Standards dated March 2012.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Recommended Motion:

I move the Council approve Preliminary Plat No. 912.42.15-02 designated as
Somerset II, adopt the Hearing Examiner's first recommendation with 25

specific conditions of plat approval, but not adopt the Hearing Examiner's
second recommendation.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Record of all prior actions taken by the City Council and/or a City Board, City

Committee, Planning Commission, or the Hearing Examiner (where applicable)

Date: Action Taken:

6/10/2015 Hearing Examiner Open Record Public Hearing

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter texi.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.



RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PRELIMINARY PLAT OF "SOMERSET 11"

(912.42.15-02) AND ADOPTING FINDINGS AND CONDITIONS OF PRELIMINARY PLAT
APPROVAL

WHEREAS, on July 14, 2015 the City of Selah City Council considered Preliminary Plat No.
912.42.15-02 known as "SOMERSET 11" located on Herlou Drive and Lyle Loop Road. Yakima
County Taxation Parcel Numbers: (181426-44005 & 44021); and,

WHEREAS,the PreliminaryPlat application includedthe request to designatetwo ofthe proposed lots as
two family residential lots in accordance with SMC 10.12.040; and,

WHEREAS, the Preliminary Plat application included an application for variance (Exception under SMC
10.50.070) to allow access to four lots (six dwelling units) by private road; and,

WHEREAS, The Hearing Examiner recommended approval of the application for Preliminary Plat and
two two-family lots, consisting oftwo separate recommendations: The first recommendation to approve
the preliminaryplat subject to 25 conditionsand the second recommendationbeing that the private access
street complywith roadway section design standardsas determinedby the Public Works Director in
accordance with the City of Selah Design and Construction Standards dated March 2012. The second
recommendation would supplement Conditions 10 and 11 ofthe first recommendation; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Selah Council has considered the Hearing Examiner's findings of fact and
conclusions and the City staff report dated June 3,2015 and the Council is satisfied that the matter has
been sufficiently considered; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council adopts the Findings and Conclusions ofthe Hearing Examiner's
Recommendation dated June 26,2015.

WHEREAS, the City Council considered the elements ofpublic use and interest to be served by such
platting, and

WHEREAS, the City Council considered the elements ofpublic health, safety, and general welfare
pertaining to the preliminary plat;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH,
WASHINGTON that Preliminary Plat No. 912.42.15-021 designated as "Somerset II" be approved, that
the Hearing Examiner's Findings and Conclusions and the Hearing Examiner's Recommendation be
adopted with the twenty five (25) specific conditions contained in said Findings and Conclusions and a
copy ofwhich is attached hereto, but that the Hearing Examiner's Second Recommendation not be
adopted.

912.42.15-02 PLAT OF "SOMERSET II"

RESOLUTION OF PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL



PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH, WASHINGTON
this 14^ day ofJuly, 2015.

John Gawlik, Mayor
ATTEST:

Dale E. Novobielski, Clerk/Treasurer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Robert Noe, City Attorney

CONDITIONS OF PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL

1. Ail design and/or Improvement notations indicated on the preliminary plat are included as conditions

of preliminary plat approval. This condition is not intended to limit the Public Works Department in

the exercise of its authorities under other provisions of the Selah Municipal Code.

2. All the design and improvement notations indicated on Exhibit 7 in the record ("Variance Proposal,

Somerset II, March 17,2015), except as modified by the other conditions imposed by the City Council

in this preliminary plat review proceeding, are included as conditions of preliminary plat approval.

3. Lots 19 and 20 are authorized to be designated as two-family residential lots on the final plat and may

be developed into two-family residential structures up to 28 feet in height following final plat

approval, subject to the following additional special requirements:

a. The two-family residential designation of these lots applies only to these lots and may not be

transferred to other lots in the subdivision.

b. Off-street parking shall be provided on the lots to provide 4 spaces per each duplex. No credit

against this requirement shall be allowed for garages and tandem parking.

c. Building materials shall be consistent in appearance with that of surrounding single-family

homes. To further ensure harmonious development of the designated lots with the

development of single family lots in the subdivision, restrictive covenants that describe the

required building specifications for the two-family dwellings shall be recorded prior to

recording the final plat for the phase in which they are in.

d. Building specifications from the restrictive covenants for the proposed two-family dwellings

shall be submitted to the Planning Department to review for consistency with these

conditions prior to recording the final plat for the phase in which they are in.

912.42.15-02 PLAT OF "SOMERSET 1!"

RESOLUTION OF PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL



e. This decision does not preciude the development of detached single-family residences on any

of these lots.

4. Final lot dimensions and lot area must substantially conform to the preliminary plat.

5. A preliminary engineering report and/or plan, prepared by a Licensed Professional Engineer,

demonstrating the feasibility of constructing all public Improvements required by Selah Municipal

Code, Chapter 10.50, must be submitted to and approved by the Public Works Department for each

separately designated phase of development prior to commencement of construction.

6. Construction plans and specifications must be reviewed and approved by the Public Works
Department prior to commencement of construction of each separately designated phase of

development. Specifications for improvements shown on the preliminary plat are minimum

specifications which may be superseded by the conditions contained herein or by specific conditions

as approved by the Public Works Department. Upon completion of construction and prior to final plat

approval (of each development phase for which final plat approval is sought), reproducible final 'as-

buiit' construction plans and a written certification by a Licensed Professional Engineer that said

improvements were completed in accordance with the City of Selah Design and Construction

Standards dated March, 2012, must be submitted to the Public Works Department for approval. All

required compaction and inspection reports shall also be submitted to the Public Works Department.

7. Reports, plans and specifications previously submitted shall count toward meeting the requirements

of Conditions #5 and #6 if accepted by the Public Works Director to the extent of the improvements

for which they are determined to be sufficient.

8. All lots must be served with a full range of public services/private utilities. All public services/private

utilities must be underground and installed prior to the surfacing of streets. Lots 17 through 20 shall

be served by an 8 inch sewer line extended in a utility easement across Lots 11 and 12 and then

continued to the other lots in the access and utility easement as shown on the Preliminary Plat. There

shall be a moratorium on street cuts for a period of five (5) years from the date of each phase

recording.

9. Lvie Loop Road: Street improvements must be constructed to City standards as approved by the Public

Works Director including 50 foot wide right-of-way, 32 foot wide asphalt pavement, concrete roiled

(or better) curb and gutter, five (5) foot wide sidewalk on one street side and street illumination. The

sidewalk shall be installed on the same side of the street as it is on the existing completed portion of

Lyie Loop Road. Utility improvements shall be extended beyond street pavement edge to facilitate

future extension where appropriate. Street grade shall not exceed 10%.

10. The private street roadway shall be constructed as a hard-surfaced street to specifications approved

by the Public Works Director prior to recording the final plat. The street shall have a minimum surface

width of 20 feet, subject to increased requirements imposed by the City Council in this proceeding.

912.42.15-02 PLAT OF "SOMERSET 11"

RESOLUTION OF PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL



11. The private street shall be designated "no-parking" as shown by the site plan submitted with the
preliminary plat application and shall be posted with signs prior to final plat approval.

12. Covenants or a road maintenance agreement among the owners of Lots 17,18,19 and 20, providing

for the perpetual maintenance of the private roadway and that establish a road maintenance fund

shall be recorded with the Yakima County Auditor and a recorded copy submitted to the Selah

Planning Department prior to recording the final plat. If driveway access to Lots 13 and 14 Is made

available from the private street, such covenants or agreement shall include owners of Lots 13 and 14.

13. Driveway access to Lots 13 and 14 shall be limited to Lyie Loop Road and the part of the private access

easement passing in a north-south direction between them.

14. Street illumination shall be installed by the developer at locations and to the specifications of the

Public Works Director (typically at 300 foot intervals or as otherwise determined by the Director of

Public Works in order to maximize illumination). Street lights shall be installed on metal poles.

15. Fire hydrants shall be provided and installed by the developer at locations approved by the City of

Selah Fire Chief and to the specifications of Selah Municipal Code, Chapter 11.30.

16. Storm Water drainage facilities to accommodate runoff generated In the plat must comply with a

drainage facilities plan prepared by a Licensed Professional Engineer and approved by the Public

Works Director. Plans submitted previously will count toward meeting this requirement if approved by

the Public Works Director. Additional documentation may be required for portions of the site not

covered by any such previously submitted plans.

17. Areas reserved for sight distance vision triangles shall be shown and noted on the final plat. (Selah

Code, Chapter 10.50).

18. Dust control measures shall be implemented as required by the Yakima Regional Clean Air Authority

rules and regulations. The Developer shall advise the Public Works Department of the name and

phone number of the contact person to report alleged dust control violations.

19. All required street signs, posts and appurtenances must be supplied by the developer and will be

Installed by the City.

20. An NPDES Construction Stormwater General Permit shall be obtained unless determined by the

Department of Ecology that it is not required.

21. The following notes shall be placed on the final plat map(s):

"The owner(s) shown hereon, their grantees and assignees in interest hereby covenant and
agree to retain all surface water generated within the plat on-site."

912.42.15-02 PLAT OF "SOMERSET H"

RESOLUTION OF PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL



22. The applicant shall recommend a street name to assign to the private access street and shail submit

the name to the Planning Department for approval prior to recording the final plat. The approved

street name shall be shown on the face of the final plat.

23. A surety bond, or such other secure financial method, in the amount of 15% of the cost of the public
improvements (as each final phase is submitted) (i.e., roads, sidewalks, street lights, drainage facilities,

sewage collection and water distribution facilities, etc.) shall be remitted to the Cityand held for a

period of two years to guarantee against defects of workmanship and materials.

24. Prior to final plat recording, all required plat improvements (utilities, streets, drainage facilities, etc.)
must be installed and accepted by the City or a surety bond pledged to the City to ensure installation

of the plat improvements within two years of final plat recording.

25. Improvements required for the subdivision must be completed and the final plat must be submitted
within the maximum 5-year time period required by RCW 58.17.140. A one-time, one-year extension

may be authorized in accordance with SMC10.50.033(c) but the request must be made before the 5-

year time period ends.

912.42.15-02 PLAT OF "SOMERSET IP

RESOLUTION OF PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL













































































































































































































































CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

7/14/2015 N-1

Title: Ordinance Authorizing the Acquisition of Personal Property and

Execution of a Financing Contract and Related Documentation Relating to the

Acquisition of Said Property.

Thru: Donald Wayman, City Administrator

From: Joe Henne, Public Works Director

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: $993,788.00

Funding Source: Streets 110, Water 411, Sewer 415 & Fire 001

Staff Recommendation:

Staff is requesting the City Council approve the ordinance authorizing the
aquistion of equipment (personal property) and execution of a financing

contract and related documentation for the WWTP and Exterior Lighting

Energy Efficiency Project with the Office of the State Treasurer.

Background / Findings & Facts:

The City has entered into an agreement with DES to provide personnel and

services for work to be performed for the City-wide energy conservation

project. The City will participate in reimbursement obligations with the

Washington State Treasurer for the DES Energy Efficiency Projects.

Recommended Motion:

Approval of the ordinance.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Record of all prior actions taken by the City Council and/or a City Board, City

Committee, Planning Commission, or the Hearing Examiner (where applicable)

Date: Action Taken:

3/24/2015 Resolution Authorizing participation in reimbursement
obligations with the Washing State Treasurer for Energy

Efficiency Projects.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text..

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text..

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.



ORDINANCE NO.

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ACQUISITION OF
PERSONAL PROPERTY AND EXECUTION OF A

FINANCING CONTRACT AND RELATED

DOCUMENTATION RELATING TO THE ACQUISITION
OF SAID PERSONAL PROPERTY

WHEREAS, the City of Selah (the "Local Agency") has executed a Notice of Intent to
the Office of State Treasurer, in the form attached hereto as Attachment 1 (the "NCI"), in
relation to the acquisition ofand the financing of the acquisition of the Property, as defined
below, under the provisions of RCW ch 39.94; and,

WHEREAS, it is deemed necessary and advisable by the Mayor of the Local Agency that
the Local Agency acquire the equipment and/or personal property identified on Attachment 1
attached hereto ("Property"); and,

WHEREAS, it is deemed necessary and advisable by the Mayor of the Local Agency that
the Local Agency enter into a Local Agency Financing Contract with the Office of the State
Treasurer, in the form attached hereto as Attachment 2 (the "Local Agency Financing Contract"),
in an amount not to exceed $993,788.00, plus related financing costs, in order to acquire the
Property and finance the acquisition of the Property; and,

WHEREAS, the Local Agency will undertake to acquire the Property on behalfof and as
agent of the Washington Finance Officers Association (the "Corporation") pursuant to the terms
of the Local Agency Financing Contract, and in accordance with all applicable purchasing
statutes and regulations applicable to the Local Agency; and,

WHEREAS, the Local Agency desires to appoint the individuals set forth in Attachment
3 as the representatives of the Local Agency in connection with the acquisition of the Property
and execution of the Local Agency Financing Contract (each an "Authorized Agency
Representative"); and,

NOW THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE

CITY OF SELAH:

SECTION 1. The individual holding the office or position set forth in Attachment 3 is
hereby appointed as the representative of the Local Agency in connection with the acquisition of
the Property and execution of the Local Agency Financing Contract and all other related
documents. A minimum of one Authorized Agency Representative shall be required to execute
any one document in order for it to be considered duly executed on behalf of the Local Agency.

SECTION 2. The form of the Local Agency Financing Contract attached hereto as
Attachment 2 is hereby approved and the Authorized Agency Representatives are hereby
authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Local Agency Financing Contract, in an
amount not to exceed $993,788.00, plus related financing costs, and in substantially the form



attached hereto with such changes as may be approved by the Authorized Representatives for the
acquisition of the Property and financing of the acquisition of the Property.

SECTION 3. The Local Agency hereby authorizes the acquisition of the property as
agent of the Corporation in accordance with the terms and provisions of the Local Agency
Financing Contract.

SECTION 4. The Authorized Representative is hereby authorized to execute and deliver
to the Office of State Treasurer all other documents, agreements and certificates, and to take all
other action, which they deem necessary or appropriate in connection with the financing ofthe
Property, including, but not limited to, any amendment to the NOI and agreements relating to
initial and ongoing disclosure in connection with the offering of securities related to the
financing.

SECTION 5. Effective Date: This ordinance shall be published in the official newspaper
of the City and shall take effect and be in full force five (5) days after the date ofpublication.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH,
WASHINGTON this H* day ofJuly, 2015.

John Gawlik, Mayor

ATTEST:

Dale E. Novobielski, Clerk/Treasurer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Robert F. Noe, City Attorney

ORDINANCE NO.



Certificate of Authorizing Ordinance

I, the undersigned, Clerk/Treasurer of the City of Selah (the "Local Agency"), DO

HEREBY CERTIFY:

1. That the attached Ordinance No. (herein called the "Ordinance") is a true and

correct copy of an Ordinance of the Local Agency adopted/passed at a regular meeting of the

City Council of the City of Selah held on the 14th day of July, 2015, and duly recorded in my

office;

2. That said meeting was duly convened and held in all respects in accordance with

law; and to the extent required by law, due and proper notice of such meeting was given; that a

quorum of the City Council was present throughout the meeting and a legally sufficient number

ofmembers of the City Council voted in the proper manner for the adoption/passage of the

Ordinance;

3. That all other requirements and proceedings incident to the proper adoption/passage

of the Resolution/Ordinance have been duly fulfilled, carried out and otherwise observed;

4. That the Ordinance remains in full force and effect and has not been amended,

repealed or superseded; and

5. That 1 am authorized to execute this certificate.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have hereunto set my hand as ofthis 14th day ofJuly, 2015.

Dale E. Novobielski, Clerk/Treasurer



Certificate Designating Authorized Agency Representative

I, John Gawlik, Mayor of the City of Selah (the "Local Agency"), hereby certify that, as
of the date hereof, pursuant to Ordinance No. , the following individual is the "Authorized
Agency Representative," as indicated by the title appended to the signature, that the following
individual is duly authorized to execute and deliver the Local Agency Financing Agreement to
which this Certificate is attached as Exhibit C, and all documentation in connection therewith,
including but not limited to the Personal Property Certificate(s) attached thereto as Exhibit B,
that the signatures set forth below is the true and genuine signature of said Authorized Agency
Representative and that pursuant to such ordinance, 1 of the 1 following signature is required on
each of the aforementioned documents in order to consider such documents executed on behalf

of the Local Agency:

Dated this 14th day ofJuly, 2015.

John Gawlik, Mayor, City of Selah

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me this 14th day ofJuly, 2015.

By:
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the

State of Washington, residing at:

Printed Name:
My Commission Expires:



Transaction No. Annex 2 to Authorizing Resolution(Equipment)

LOCAL AGENCY FINANCING CONTRACT, SERIES 2015B

(EQUIPMENT)
This Local Agency Financing Contract, Series 2015B (the "Agency Financing Contract") is

entered into by and between the state of Washington (the "State"), acting by and through the
State Treasurer (the "State Treasurer"), and the City of Selah, a Municipality of the State (the
"Local Agency").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, certain State agencies (as defined in Appendix I hereto, "State Agencies") are
authorized to acquire real and personal property used or needed by such State Agencies through
Agency Financing Contracts entered into pursuant to Chapter 356, Laws of Washington, 1989,
codified as Chapter 39.94 of the Revised Code of Washington (the "RCW"), as supplemented
and amended (the "Act"); and

WHEREAS, Chapter 291, Laws of Washington, 1998 supplemented and amended the Act to
authorize the State to enter into Agency Financing Contracts on behalf of certain local agencies
(as described therein, "Local Agencies"), including the Local Agency, to finance the acquisition
of real and personal property by such Local Agencies; and

WHEREAS, the State Treasurer has established a consolidated program providing for the
execution and delivery of certificates of participation in such Agency Financing Contracts, or in
Master Financing Contracts with respect thereto, in series from time to time in order to provide
financing or refinancing for the costs of acquisition of real and personal property by State
Agencies and Local Agencies; and

WHEREAS, simultaneously with the execution and delivery hereof, the State is entering into a
Master Financing Contract, Series 2015B, dated as of the Dated Date (the "Master Financing
Contract") with the Washington Finance Officers Association, a nonprofit corporation duly
organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the state of Washington (the
"Corporation"), to provide financing for the costs of acquisition of certain items of personal
property by certain State Agencies and Local Agencies, including the Local Agency, under the
terms set forth therein; and

WHEREAS, the State Treasurer and the Local Agency have determined that it is necessary and
desirable to enter into this Agency Financing Contract to provide financing or refinancing for the
costs of acquisition of certain items of personal property, described in Exhibit B hereto (the
"Property"), by the Local Agency; and

WHEREAS, the State Finance Committee has authorized the execution and delivery of this
Agency Financing Contract pursuant to Resolution No. 987 adopted on October 7,2003; and



WHEREAS, all acts, conditions and things required by law to exist, to have happened and to
have been performed precedent to and in connection with the execution and delivery of this
Agency Financing Contract do exist, have happened and have been performed in regular and due
time, form and manner as required by law, and the Parties hereto are now duly authorized to
execute, deliver and perform their respective obligations under this Agency Financing Contract;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained
herein and for other valuable consideration, the Parties hereto mutually agree as follows:

Section 1.1 Defined Terms. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined in this Agency
Financing Contract shall have the respective meanings given such terms in Appendix I hereto.

Section 1.2 Notice of Intent: Personal Propertv Certificate: Certificate Designating

Authorized Local Aeencv Representative. The Local Agency has delivered a Notice of Intent to
the State Treasurer in the form of Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by this
reference. In order to evidence its acceptance of the Property financed and acquired pursuant
hereto, the Local Agency has executed and delivered herewith, or will execute and deliver within
60 days from the Dated Date to the State Treasurer, a Personal Property Certificate in the form of
Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. The Local Agency has
delivered a Certificate Designating Authorized Agency Representatives to the State Treasurer in
the form of Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. Said Certificate
is currently in force and has not been amended, withdrawn or superseded, and the signatures
shown thereon are true and correct originals of the signatures of the persons who hold the titles
shown opposite their names. The signature of any one of the individuals shown on said
Certificate is sufficient to bind the Local Agency under this Agency Financing Contract with
respect to any of the undertakings contemplated herein. The terms and provisions set forth in
Appendix II hereto are incorporated herein and made a part hereof by this reference.

Section 1.3 Installment Sale and Purchase of Propertv. The State hereby agrees to sell, assign
and convey, and does hereby sell, assign and convey to the Local Agency, and the Local Agency
hereby agrees to purchase, acquire and assume, and does hereby purchase, acquire and assume,
fi-om the State, all of the State's right, title and interest in and to the Property and all proceeds
and profits thereof and therefrom, subject to the security interest created pursuant to Section 2.5
of Appendix II hereof, and the Local Agency agrees to pay in consideration thereof the Purchase
Price therefor and interest thereon and the Additional Costs in accordance with Section 1.4

hereof, and all other amoimts required to be paid by the Local Agency hereunder, all in
accordance with the provisions of this Agency Financing Contract.

Section 1.4 Aeencv Installment Pavments. In consideration of the sale of the Property and the
covenants and agreements of the State in this Agency Financing Contract, the Local Agency
hereby promises to pay to the State the following amounts at the following times: (a) On each
Agency Installment Payment Date, the Agency Installment Payment set forth in Exhibit D
hereto, consisting of a Principal Component and/or an Interest Component as set forth in such
Exhibit; and (b) All Additional Costs incurred by the State in connection with the sale of the
Property to the Local Agency, the execution and delivery of the Certificates, and the observance
and performance of the Series 2015B Agreements, within thirty (30) days following receipt of an
invoice from the State with respect thereto which includes (i) a brief description of each such
Additional Cost, (ii) the party to whom payment is due, (iii) the amount thereof, and (iv) such
additional information as the Local Agency may reasonably request.



Section 1.5 Term. The term of this Local Agency Financing Contract shall commence on the
Dated Date and shall terminate on the date on which all amounts due hereunder shall have been

paid or the payment thereof duly provided for pursuant to Section 4.3 of Appendix II hereof.

STATE OF WASHINGTON

OFFICE OF THE STATE TREASURER

By

Designated Treasurer Representative

CITY OF SELAH

as Local Agency

By

Authorized Agency Representative



Notice of Intent

State of Washington LOCAL (Local Option Capital Asset Lending)

Local Government Information
County: Yakima

Legal Naine; City of Selah MCAG No.: 0844

Contact Person: Dale Novobielski Title: Clerk-Treasurer

Address; 115 W Naches, Selah, WA Zip: 98942
Phone: 509-698-7334 Fax: 509-698-7338 E-inail: DNovobielski@ci.selah.wa.us

Would you prefer to receive financing docinnents (check one): [J Already have financing documents

X bye-mail LH Hard copy by U.S. mail

Property (Real Estate or Equipment) —
Propert>' description (include quantity, if applicable); LED Street Lights and Building Lighting - interior and exterior.
WWTP equipment including; aeration mixer, 75 HPblower, 3 pumps andvariable trequency drives.
Total cost: SI,661,428.00 Maximum amount to finance: $993,788.00
Finance term: 15 years Useful life; 20years Desired financing date: August 2015
Purpose ofproperty (Please bespecific and include dept ofuse): Facilities upgrades through energy efficiency project.

Ifreal estate, the Real Estate Worksheet: I IIs attached | | Will be provided by (date) _

Ifequipment, u-ill the property purchase price bepaid with: program proceeds or ^ general fund.s to be reimbursed
from program proceeds? Ifgeneral funds are to beused, include a copy oftlie local agency's reimbursement re.solution with
the finaucina documents.

Security Pledge --i—
• Voted genera! obligation of local government. X Non-voted general obligation oflocal goveminent

Other Information

Approximate population: _don'l need_ (not required forcities and counties).

If any of the following apply, please provide a complete discussion ona separate page:

• Yes XNo Does the local government use registered warrants, interfund loans or other cash flow borrowing?
[H Yes XNo Is tlie local govermiient aparty to significant Imgation?

I I Yes ^No Is this areimbursement? Ifyes, date funds spent_
Has local goveroment received abond rating in the last two yeare? XYes Q No Bond rating(s): AA-

Caltach rating agency letUr}

By executing this Notice ofIntent, the local agency acknowledges, agrcc.s toand accepts its designation and appointment asthe agent of
the nominal lessor in connection with the acquisition of the project. 8y e.xeeuting this Notice of Intent, the local agency furtlicr
acknowledges and agrees that certificate counsel and any other s|>ecial coun.sci to thestale in connection with the autliorization. Issuance
and delivery of the certificates and the related financing dtKumcnts shall not heacting, and shall not bedcaned toact, ascounsel to the
local agency, nor shall any aitom^-clfcnt relationship exist or be iieeined to exist between such counsel and any participating local agency
in connection with .such matters.

Submitted by: /sX? Title: _

Signature:


